1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Electronically Filed
Feb 01 2011 10:31 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman

FITZGERALDS CASINO/HOTEL; and)
CANNON COCHRAN MANAGEMENT)
SERVICES, INC.)

Appellants,)

vs.)

GARY MOGG,)

Respondent.)
_____)

Case No.: 55818

OPENING BRIEF

JOHN P. LAVERY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 004665
JEANNE P. BAWA, ESQ
Nevada Bar No. 007359
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
400 South Fourth Street, Suite 500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Appellant
FITZGERALDS CASINO/HOTEL and
CANNON COCHRAN MANAGEMENT
SERVICES, INC.

GARY T. WATSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000450
NEVADA ATTORNEY FOR
INJURED WORKERS

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is the appeal by the Employer, FITZGERALDS CASINO/HOTEL (hereinafter referred to as “Appellant Employer”), and Third-Party Administrator, CANNON COCHRAN MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC., (hereinafter referred to as “Appellant Administrator”), of the Eighth Judicial District Court’s March 22, 2010 Order Denying Petition for Judicial Review. (Joint Appendix pp. 25-26; hereinafter referred to as “Appendix p. ___.”) Appellants appealed on the basis that substantial evidence did not support the underlying Appeals Officer’s finding that this was a compensable industrial insurance claim. Respondent, Gary Mogg (hereinafter referred to as “Respondent”), did not carry his burden to demonstrate that his alleged spine injuries arose out of and in the course of his employment as a surveillance inspector.

In a written determination dated February 26, 2008, Appellant Administrator denied liability for Respondent’s industrial insurance claim. (Appendix p. 239.) Respondent appealed that determination to a Hearing Officer. (Appendix p. 240.)

The Hearings Division scheduled a hearing on the issue of claim denial on June 4, 2008. In an Order of Dismissal dated June 12, 2008, the Hearing Officer mistakenly dismissed Respondent’s appeal due to Respondent’s failure to appear. An Order of Rescission was issued on June 24, 2008, as Respondent was present for the hearing. (Appendix pp. 241-244.)

The Hearing Officer issued a Decision and Order dated June 24, 2008, affirming the denial of the industrial insurance claim. (Appendix pp. 270-271.)

Respondent appealed that Decision and Order to an Appeals Officer. (Appendix p. 269.)

On June 15, 2009, the Appeals Officer’s Decision and Order reversed claim denial and remanded for claim acceptance as well as all appropriate benefits. (Appendix pp. 42-48.)

...

1 Appellants timely filed their Petition for Judicial Review in the Eighth Judicial District Court
2 on July 1, 2009. (Appendix pp. 39-41.)

3 Appellants filed a Motion for Stay Pending Appeal on July 2, 2009.

4 Respondent filed his Notice of Intent to Participate In and Response to Petition for Judicial
5 Review on July 9, 2009. (Appendix pp. 35-38.)

6 The Eighth Judicial District Court issued an Order Granting Stay on July 30, 2009. (Appendix
7 pp. 33-34.) The Notice of Entry of Order was filed on August 3, 2009. (Appendix pp. 27-32.)

8 The Record on Appeal was transmitted on August 5, 2009.

9 After the parties' briefs were filed, on March 22, 2010 the District Court denied Appellants'
10 Petition for Judicial Review. (Appendix pp. 25-26.)

11 On March 23, 2010, the Notice of Entry of Order was filed. (Appendix pp. 20-24.)

12 On April 8, 2010, Appellants filed their Notice of Appeal and requested a Stay pending the
13 hearing on the merits of this appeal. (Appendix pp. 12-19.)

14 On May 7, 2010, the Eighth Judicial District Court's Order Granting Stay Pending Appeal to
15 Supreme Court was entered. (Appendix pp. 7-8.) The Notice of Entry of Order was entered on May
16 11, 2010. (Appendix pp. 1-6.)

17 Appellants now file their Opening Brief.

18 ...

19 ...

20 ...

21 ...

22 ...

23 ...

24 ...

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

II.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 29, 2008, Respondent completed a Notice of Injury or Occupational Disease (hereinafter referred to as "Form C-1".) He alleged that, on January 27, 2008, while working within the course and scope of his employment for Appellant Employer, he injured his back, neck and left arm. He described the accident as occurring when he "was attempting to place his feet on counter and the chair flipped over." (Appendix p. 225.)

On January 28, 2008, an Incident Data report was completed by Security Officer Sylvia Sinclair. Security Officer Sinclair spoke with Respondent by telephone. Respondent was employed as a Surveillance Agent. Respondent stated that, on January 27, 2008, he was attempting to place his feet on the counter in the Surveillance Room when his chair flipped over. He further stated that he injured his neck, left arm, and lower back. Respondent said he had a pre-existing injury and the fall aggravated the injury. (Appendix pp. 226-228.)

On January, 29, 2008, a co-worker, Sheldon Kanner, provided a witness statement as follows:

At 13:30 Jan 27, 2008 I was sitting at my work station. I noticed that [claimant] was starting to lean back and put his feet on the desk in front of him. At that time the chair started to lean to the left the chair & [claimant] fell over and [claimant] landed on his left side. At that time I ask him if he needed any assistance. He walk around awhile then went back to work. (Appendix p. 229.)

On January 29, 2008, Respondent completed an Employee's Claim for Compensation/Report of Initial Treatment (hereinafter referred to as "Form C-4"). Respondent stated that he injured his neck and lower back when he went to put his legs up on the corner of a desk causing the chair to flip backwards. (Appendix p. 230.)

...

...

...

1 The physician's portion of the Form C-4 was completed at Concentra Medical Center
2 (hereinafter referred to as "Concentra") by Dr. Adrian. Respondent was diagnosed with a strain of the
3 cervical, lumbar and thoracic spine. Physical therapy was recommended. Respondent was placed on
4 restricted duty. (Appendix pp. 230-234.)
5

6 Appellant Employer completed an Employer's Report of Industrial Injury or Occupational
7 Disease (hereinafter referred to as "Form C-3") on January 29, 2008. (Appendix p. 235.)
8

9 Respondent had a follow up appointment with Concentra on February 6, 2008. It was noted that
10 Respondent had a significant pre-existing history related to his spine. In 1972, Respondent was in a
11 motorcycle accident. In 1977, he was in a motor vehicle accident. He had another motor vehicle
12 accident in 1984. He also had a work related accident in 1982, and a left knee injury in 1987. He had
13 a shoulder injury in 1992 and 1993. "He says in the year 2000 he had a lipoma that was removed at the
14 base of his neck and has always had pain since then." He is treating with a spine surgeon, Dr. William
15 Smith who took him off methadone in January of 2008 and switched him to eight (8) pills of
16 Oxycodone per day. He was also on Lyrica for pain in his left hand. Dr. Parekh's assessment was as
17 follows:
18

19 "Back pain. Previous history of a lot of preexisting issues with possible
20 preexisting disc disease. Patient's lumbar spine x-rays that have been done her
21 indicated a narrowing of L1-L2 disc space with osteophyte formation anteriorly,
22 grade 1 spondylolisthesis at L5 anteriorly on S1 with bilateral spondylolysis at
23 this level. On the cervical spine, osteophyte formation present anterior and
24 posterior C5-6, C6-C7. Spinous and transverse processes appear normal."
25 (Appendix pp. 236-238.)
26

27 In a letter dated February 26, 2008, Appellant Administrator issued a written determination
28 denying liability for Respondent's industrial insurance claim. (Appendix p. 239.)
29

30 Respondent appealed that determination to a Hearing Officer. (Appendix p. 240.)
31

32 ...
33

34 ...
35

1 The Hearings Division scheduled a hearing on the issue of claim denial on June 4, 2008. In an
2 Order of Dismissal dated June 12, 2008, the Hearing Officer mistakenly dismissed Respondent's appeal
3 due to Respondent's failure to appear. An Order of Rescission was issued on June 24, 2008, as
4 Respondent was present for the hearing. (Appendix pp. 241-244.)

5
6 The Hearing Officer then issued a Decision and Order dated June 24, 2008, affirming the denial
7 of the industrial insurance claim. (Appendix pp. 270-271.)

8 Respondent appealed that Decision and Order to an Appeals Officer. (Appendix p. 269.)

9 Several of Respondent's co-workers were interviewed regarding the practices and procedures
10 for a surveillance inspector. These individuals provided statements regarding Respondent's act of
11 putting his feet up on the counter at his work station.
12

13 Becky Shope, Surveillance Inspector, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

14 I Becky Shope have currently been working here at Fitzgeralds Casino and Hotel
15 in the Surveillance Department. During my time here in Surveillance it has been
16 the procedure of the room to be constantly on guard at all time to observe
17 anything at any time. At no time has it been allowed to rest any of our body
18 parts on the working station. The only time when we use the working station for
19 our personal use is for when he [sic] have lunch. (Appendix p. 172.)

20 William Preston Friday, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

21 It is my knowledge that any surveillance Inspector or agent is not aloud [sic] to
22 have his or her feet on the desk while working. This may indicated someone
23 sleeping, or not doing his or hers [sic] job. This is not a professional position
24 while in any Surveillance room. (Appendix p. 174.)

25 Philip Gravier, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

26 I Philip Gravier, have worked in surveillance room at the Fitzgerald's since May
27 of 2008. In that time that I've been here I've never been authorized to put my
28 feet on the desk. (Appendix p. 175.)

Vicky Harper, swing shift surveillance inspector, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

I have been employed with the Fitzgerald surveillance room for just over a year
now. To my knowledge placing your feet on the workstation desk has never
been accepted. (Appendix p. 176.)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Sheldon Kanner, Surveillance Inspector, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

I, Sheldon Kanner have been working for the Fitzgerald for over 2 years in the Surveillance department. I have been in the work field for 45 years and I never seen anybody put there [sic] feet upon there [sic] work station. It is unprofessional and you cannot effectively do there [sic] assigned work in that position. I was told when I accepted the position that I must be aware of what is going on at all times. (Appendix p. 177.)

Edward J. Cashmon, Surveillance Manager, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

I, Edward Cashmon have been employed in the Surveillance Department of the Fitzgerald's since 1995 and to my knowledge it has never been policy, condoned, or authorized to place your feet on the Surveillance console/desk to stretch your legs. (Appendix p. 178.)

Bruce Carley a Surveillance Inspector, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

I have been working in the Surveillance Department since March 2007. It is the policy of the room to act in a professional manner at all times. Using the work station as a foot rest (For example, putting your feet on the desk) violates this policy. (Appendix p. 179.)

David Rusyn, a Surveillance Inspector, provided a voluntary statement as follows:

In my entire career as a Surveillance Inspector I have never observed any inspector place his feet on his desk. I do not believe that this would be considered acceptable behavior by any Inspector I have ever worked with. Furthermore, to my knowledge no inspector has been authorized to place their feet on the desk. (Appendix p. 180.)

Brian Swartwood, Employees Relation Manager/Risk Management provided a memorandum dated January 27, 2009, explaining that he did not recall the date of purchase for the chair involved in the incident. After the incident, the chair was inspected and no defects were found. The chair has continued to be used in the Surveillance Room. To the best of his knowledge, it is not common practice for the Surveillance staff to put their feet on the desk while sitting at work. The chairs are wheeled on a hard surface, and to put your feet up would not be a safe work place activity. (Appendix p. 181.)

...
...

1 On June 15, 2009, the Appeals Officer's Decision and Order reversed claim denial and
2 remanded for claim acceptance as well as all appropriate benefits. (Appendix pp. 42-48.)

3 Appellants, through Counsel, filed a Petition for Judicial Review and a Motion for Stay Pending
4 Appeal and a Request for Order Shortening Time. (Appendix pp. 39-41.)

5 On July 30, 2009, the Order Granting Motion for Stay was filed. (Appendix pp. 33-34.)

6 On August 3, 2009, the Notice of Entry of Order for the Order Granting Motion for Stay was
7 filed. (Appendix pp. 27-32.)

8 On March 22, 2010, the District Court's Decision and Order Denying Petition for Judicial
9 Review was entered. (Appendix pp. 25-26.)

10 On March 23, 2010, the Notice of Entry of Order was mailed to Appellants' Counsel.
11 (Appendix pp. 20-24.)

12 Appellants appealed the denial of the Petition for Judicial Review and requested a Stay pending
13 the hearing on the merits of this appeal. (Appendix pp. 12-19.)

14 On May 7, 2010, the Eighth Judicial District Court's Order Granting Stay Pending Appeal to
15 Supreme Court was entered. (Appendix pp. 7-8.) The Notice of Entry of Order was entered on May
16 11, 2010. (Appendix pp. 1-6.)

17 Appellants now file their Opening Brief.

18 ...

19 ...

20 ...

21 ...

22 ...

23 ...

24 ...

1 III.

2 ARGUMENT

3 The Decision of the Appeals Officer To Reverse the Denial of
4 This Industrial Insurance Claim Is Not Supported by Substantial Evidence

5 The decision of an Appeals Officer must be supported by substantial evidence. Substantial
6 evidence is that quantity and quality of evidence which a reasonable man would accept as adequate to
7 support a conclusion. See, Maxwell v. SIIS, 109 Nev. 327, 331, 849 P.2d 267, 270 (1993); and Horne
8 v. State Indus. Ins. Sys., 113 Nev. 532, 537, 936 P.2d 839 (1997).

9
10 It is Respondent, not Appellants, who had the burden of proving his case by a preponderance
11 of all the evidence. State Industrial Insurance System v. Hicks, 100 Nev. 567, 688 P.2d 324 (1984);
12 Johnson v. State ex rel. Wyoming Worker’s Compensation Div., 798 P.2d 323 (1990); Hagler v.
13 Micron Technology, Inc., 118 Idaho 596, 798 P.2d 55 (1990).

14
15 In attempting to prove his case, Respondent had the burden of going beyond speculation and
16 conjecture. That means that Respondent had to establish the work connection of his injuries, the causal
17 relationship between the work related injury and his disability, the extent of his disability, and all facets
18 of the claim by a preponderance of all the evidence. To prevail, Respondent had to present more
19 evidence than an amount which would make his case and his opponent’s “evenly balanced.” Maxwell
20 v. SIIS, 109 Nev. 327, 849 P.2d 267 (1993); SIIS v. Khweiss, 108 Nev. 123, 825 P.2d 218 (1992); SIIS
21 v. Kelly, 99 Nev. 774, 671 P.2d 29 (1983); 3, A. Larson, The Law of Workmen’s Compensation, §
22 80.33(a).

23 ...
24 ...
25 ...
26 ...
27 ...
28 ...

1 The issue before this Court arose from Appellants' appeal of the Appeals Officer's reversal of
2 claim denial. In the present case, Respondent alleged that he injured his lower back, neck and left arm
3 when he went to prop his legs up on a desk causing his chair to flip over. Respondent was employed
4 as a surveillance agent by Appellant Employer. His job required him to monitor televisions with
5 surveillance feeds from around the casino property. The description of the January 27, 2008 incident
6 does not establish a causal connection between his alleged injury and his employment as required by
7 NRS 616C.150. Respondent has not carried his NRS 616C.150 burden as there is no medical evidence
8 that connects his injury to the duties arising from the course and scope of his employment. His treating
9 physician, Dr. Parekh, detailed a very significant history of pre-existing injuries and the fact that
10 Respondent was already treating with Dr. Smith for his spine before this incident at work.
11
12

13 NRS 616A.010(2) makes it clear that:

14 A claim for compensation filed pursuant to the provisions of chapters
15 616A to 616D, inclusive, or chapter 617 of NRS must be decided on its merit
16 and not according to the principle of common law that requires statutes
17 governing workers' compensation to be liberally construed because they are
18 remedial in nature.

19 NRS 616C.150(1), NRS 616A.030, and NRS 616A.265 mandate that:

20 **NRS 616C.150 Compensation prohibited unless preponderance of
21 evidence establishes that injury arose out of and in course of employment;
22 rebuttable presumption if notice of injury is filed after termination of
23 employment.**

24 1. An injured employee or his dependents are not entitled to receive
25 compensation pursuant to the provisions of chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive,
26 of NRS unless the employee or his dependents establish by a preponderance of
27 the evidence that the employee's injury arose out of and in the course of his
28 employment.

29 **NRS 616A.030 "Accident" defined.** "Accident" means an unexpected
30 or unforeseen event happening suddenly and violently, with or without human
31 fault, and producing at the time objective symptoms of an injury.

32 ...

33 ...

1 **NRS 616A.265 “Injury” and “personal injury” defined.**

2 1. “Injury” or “personal injury” means a sudden and tangible happening
3 of a traumatic nature, producing an immediate or prompt result which is
4 established by medical evidence, including injuries to prosthetic devices. Except
5 as otherwise provided in subsection 3, any injury sustained by an employee
6 while engaging in an athletic or social event sponsored by his employer shall be
7 deemed not to have arisen out of or in the course of employment unless the
8 employee received remuneration for participation in the event.

9 An accident or injury is said to arise out of employment when there is a causal connection
10 between the injury and the employee’s work. In other words, the injured party must establish a link
11 between the workplace conditions and how those conditions caused the injury. Further, Respondent
12 must demonstrate that the origin of the injury is related to some risk involved within the scope of
13 employment. However, if an accident is not fairly traceable to the nature of employment or the
14 workplace environment, then the injury cannot be said to arise out of a claimant’s employment. Finally,
15 resolving whether an injury arose out of employment is examined by a totality of the circumstances.

16 See, also, Mitchell v. Clark County School District, 121 Nev. 179, 111 P.3d 1104 (2005).

17 Furthermore, this Court, in Rio Suite Hotel & Casino v. Gorsky, 113 Nev. 600, 939 P.2d 1043
18 (1997), held that the “Nevada Industrial Insurance Act is not a mechanism which makes employers
19 absolutely liable for injuries suffered by employees who are on the job.” The Court concluded by
20 stating, “The requirements of ‘arising out of and in the course of employment’ make it clear that a
21 claimant must establish more than being at work and suffering an injury in order to recover.” Id.

22 The statements from Respondent’s coworkers confirm that propping one’s feet upon the desk
23 was not a common practice for a surveillance agent. Therefore, any injury stemming from that action
24 should not be considered to arise out of and in the course of employment. Respondent argued that
25 because there was no written rule prohibiting the placement of his feet on the work counter, that such
26 an act did not deviate from the normal practices of a surveillance agent, and therefore, his accident did
27 arise out of and in the course of his employment.

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