1 IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

2 **FILED**

3 **MAR 24 2011**

4 *Tracie K. Lindeman*
5 TRACIE K. LINDEMAN
6 CLERK OF SUPREME COURT
7 BY *Tracie K. Lindeman*
8 DEPUTY CLERK

9 FITZGERALDS CASINO/HOTEL AND)
10 CANNON COCHRAN MANAGEMENT)
11 SERVICES, INC.)

12 Appellants,)

S.C. Case No. 55818

13 vs.)

14 GARY MOGG,)

15 Respondent.)

16 APPEAL: FROM MARCH 22, 2010 DENIAL OF PETITION
17 FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW BY EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

18 RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF

19 JOHN P. LAVERY, ESQ.
20 LEWIS, BRISBOIS, ET AL.
21 Nevada State Bar No.: 004665
22 400 S. Fourth Street, Ste. 500
23 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
24 (702) 893-3383

GARY T. WATSON, ESQ., DEPUTY

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

(1) IS THE APPEALS OFFICER'S JUNE 15, 2009 DECISION AND ORDER SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE AND DEVOID OF LEGAL ERROR?

II.

STATEMENT OF CASE

This is Appellants' Self-Insured Fitzgerald Casino/Hotel and Third-Party Administrator Cannon Cochran Management Services, Inc. (hereinafter Employer) appeal of the March 22, 2010 Decision and Order Denying Petition for Judicial Review. Appen. pp. 025-026. The Respondent injured worker, Gary Mogg (hereinafter Claimant), timely appealed a February 26, 2008 notice of claim denial (Appen. p. 239) regarding his January 27, 2008 job accident claim.

After a hearing on April 17, 2008, Hearing Officer Garcia entered her June 24, 2008 Decision and Order affirming denial of benefits. App. pp. 270-271.

The Claimant timely appealed to the higher appeals office level and the Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers (NAIW) was appointed to represent him on July 21, 2008. Appen. p. 267. NAIW is a State agency, being in effect public defenders appointed to assist injured workers in hearings before the State Department of Administration, Hearings Division. NAIW receives no financial remuneration from the appointed Claimants or from their benefits.

The Hearings and Appeals Offices are part of the State of Nevada, Department of Administration, and comprise the two levels of administrative appeal that an injured worker may

NEVADA ATTORNEY FOR INJURED WORKERS
1000 East William Street, Suite 208
Carson City, NV 89701 (775) 684-7555
2200 South Rancho Drive, Suite 230
Las Vegas, NV 89102 (702) 486-2830

1 utilize when appealing from an adverse determination by an
2 industrial insurer. The evidentiary hearings held on May 5 and
3 May 14, 2009 were governed by NRS Chapters 616A-D and 233B
4 (Administrative Procedure Act). Contrary to the prior hearing
5 before the hearing officer, this is a formal proceeding, in which
6 witnesses are sworn and a written record is made of the
7 proceeding. It is a de novo proceeding. Liggett v. State Indus.
8 Ins. Sys., 99 Nev. 262, 661 P.2d 882 (1983). The decision of the
9 appeals officer is the final and binding administrative
10 determination of a claim for compensation under Chapter 616, and
11 the whole record consists of all evidence taken at the hearing
12 before the appeals officer and any findings of fact and
13 conclusions of law based thereon. NRS 616C.340(6).

14 After duly considering witness testimony, arguments of
15 counsel, and the documentary evidence, in her June 15, 2009
16 Decision and Order (Appen. pp. 042-048) Appeals Officer
17 Schwartzer reversed the Employer's denial of industrial insurance
18 benefits and remanded to the self-insured Employer for provision
19 of appropriate benefits under NRS Chapter 616 (Nevada Industrial
20 Insurance Act).

21 The Employer timely filed a Petition for Judicial
22 Review with the district court on July 1, 2009. Appen. pp. 039-
23 041. NAIW filed a timely Notice of Intent to Participate
24 pursuant to NRS 233B.133(3) on July 9, 2009. Appen. pp. 035-037.
25 After considering a Motion for a Stay of Benefits pending appeal,
26 Judge Adair entered an Order Granting Stay of Benefits on July
27 27, 2009 which was filed on July 30, 2009. Appen. pp. 033-034.
28 ///

1 Her March 22, 2010 Decision and Order was timely appealed to
2 this Court on April 8, 2010. Appen. pp. 012-015. Judge Adair
3 also entered a post Judicial Review Order Granting Stay on May 7,
4 2010. Appen. pp. 007-008. The Claimant has thus received no
5 benefits in his claim since his January 27, 2008 job accident.

6 III.

7 STATEMENT OF FACTS

8 At the time of his January 27, 2008 job accident, the
9 Claimant had been employed by the Employer in surveillance for
10 almost two years. Appen. p. 235. The Claimant testified at the
11 first hearing setting: May 5, 2009. Appen. pp. 101-103. The
12 Claimant described the basic duties of a surveillance inspector,
13 a.k.a. "eye in the sky". He described two station desks and
14 approximately 38 video monitors. On his accident date, co-worker
15 Sheldon Kanner was on Station 2 and he was at Station 1. Appen.
16 p. 111. He went to the cafeteria for takeout lunch and ate at
17 his desk. Appen. p. 112. He described his January 27, 2008 job
18 accident:

19 Q. Can you explain to us what happened?

20 A. It was about an hour and a half left in my shift,
21 and instead of taking a break, we had new chairs
22 that were just ordered by Greg Brewer, who was the
23 manager, and they were on casters. I went to
24 swivel and put my feet up to get something, and
25 the chair bucked and threw me down on the ground.
26 I tried to catch myself and couldn't.

27 Q. Which direction did you fall off the chair?

28 A. To the left.

Q. Okay. And what was the purpose of your putting
your feet up on the desk?

A. To get some circulation in my legs.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Q. Okay. And this was how far into your shift already?

A. Six and a half hours.

Q. Okay. Now, if the chair hadn't of thrown you back, back and on the ground, if you had gotten to the point where you were able to rest your feet on - - first of all, what part of the desk were you going to rest your feet on?

A. The corner.

Appen. pp. 113-114.

* * *

Q. Had you done that before during your shift in terms of propping your feet up on the corner of your desk?

A. Yes, I had.

Q. Okay. On the prior occasions that you had done that did it obstruct your view of any of the monitors you were assigned to watch?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. Okay. So going back to the actual accident, describe physically what you were feeling and what was happening with your body.

A. After I hit the floor?

Q. Well, during and after.

A. Well, as I was raising my legs, left leg first, I went right leg and the chair seemed to buck. I fell to the left, landed on my left elbow and my left side.

Q. Okay.

A. I laid there for a couple minutes. Sheldon Canner said, "Are you okay?"

I said, "I don't know."

Q. So Sheldon - - okay. I'm sorry. I didn't mean to interrupt you. Okay.

///

1 A. And it took me a few minutes to get up holding my
2 side, my arm, because it landed on - - it's a tile
floor.

3 Q. Okay. And did you finish your shift?

4 A. Yes, I did.

5 Appen. pp. 114-115.

6 The Claimant testified that he was using a new type of
7 chair that day. The old chairs provided by the Employer were of
8 a "lounge-type" and the new one was an executive-type on casters.
9 Appen. p. 117. Two of the new chairs were provided. Appen. pp.
10 117-118. On cross-examination, the Claimant explained that the
11 surveillance team "is supposed to be secret" and that they
12 therefore were not to associate with co-workers in the EDR -
13 employee dining room. Appen. p. 124. He explained that at his
14 work station it was difficult to extend his legs to get more leg
15 circulation in a seated position.

16 Q. The chair you're sitting in, is it on wheels?

17 A. The one I'm sitting in now?

18 Q. No, the chair you were sitting in at the time.

19 A. Absolutely.

20 Q. Okay. So if I understand your testimony
21 correctly, you're sitting in a chair
22 looking at a bank of monitors; is that
23 correct?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Okay. Your intent was to stretch your
26 legs; correct?

27 A. Yes.

28 ///

1 Q. Okay. So you couldn't extend your legs
2 in front of you in this rolling chair?

3 A. Stretch my legs, get some blood
4 circulating in them, because when you're
5 in a seated position, the blood goes
6 down to your feet. They end up getting
7 numb. If you've ever worked in
8 surveillance you know what it's like;
9 dark, dirty, dingy.

10 Mr. Lavery: Okay. Your Honor, I'm going to
11 move to strike as
12 nonresponsive.

13 By Mr. Lavery:

14 Q. My question was, you couldn't extend
15 your legs in front of you to stretch
16 your legs, to extend you legs in front
17 of you?

18 A. Only a little bit because there was a
19 row of wooden tape holders behind there
20 and a case next to me that had the VCR
21 and the DVD player and all of this. So
22 you could only move so much.

23 Appen. pp. 125-126.

24 When the Claimant testified that he had seen the
25 surveillance tape of his job accident, the Employer's counsel was
26 asked to provide it to the appeals officer. Appen. p. 132.

27 The hearing reconvened on May 14, 2009. Appen. pp.
28 051-093. A DVD tape of the surveillance film was admitted as

1 Employer's "C". Appen. pp. 098-100. It is assumed that the
2 Employer has provided a copy to the Court. Appen. pp. 98-100.
3 If not, the Appendix should be supplemented with a copy.
4 Claimant's co-worker, Mr. Kanner, testified for the Employer.
5 The witness testified that the two security inspectors on shift
6 would be reviewing approximately 40 monitors. Appen. p. 60. He
7 witnessed Claimant's job accident.

8 Q. Did you actually see Mr. Mogg fall to
9 the floor?

10 A. Yes, I did.

11 Q. Okay. Can you briefly describe to the
12 Appeals Officer what you saw?

13 A. I saw Mr. Mogg starting to lean back on
14 his chair and just in a relaxing way.
15 He put up his one foot, and then when he
16 put up the second foot, I saw the chair
17 start to lean just to the left which was
18 towards me. But when he started like
19 this he went - it was like slow motion
20 going down, and he just tipped over onto
21 the floor.

22 Q. Okay. Did the chair break? Did it
23 collapse?

24 A. No.

25 Q. Did it fall apart?

26 A. No, sir.

27 Q. Okay. It was simply a matter of
28 somebody leaning back in a chair and

1 just like you did when you're in second
2 grade. You flip over backwards?

3 A. He went to the left.

4 Q. Okay.

5 A. He went to the left.

6 Q. Did the chair - is the chair similar to
7 the ones that we have in here that have
8 the wheels on it?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Okay. And this particular chair has a
11 star pattern on the bottom of it. It
12 looks like there's five wheels on it.

13 Is it set up essentially the same way?

14 A. No. It has four, four wheels.

15 Appen. pp. 061-062. Emphasis added.

16 Q. Okay. It was simply a matter of somebody leaning
17 back in a chair and just like you did when you're
in the second grade. You flip over backward?

18 A. He went to the left.

19 Q. Okay.

20 A. He went to the left.

21 Appen. pp. 061-062.

22 His co-worker corroborated Claimant's testimony that
23 the surveillance inspectors "cannot eat lunch with anybody."

24 Appen. p. 063. NAIW counsel noted that the tape showed Mr.

25 Kanner turning his chair and leaning back. Appen. p. 071.

26 During final argument, Employer's counsel stipulated that the
27 evidence did not show that the Claimant intended to "willfully"
28 injure himself. Appen. p. 079.

1 Prior to the evidentiary hearings, the Employer
2 responded to Claimant's Request for Admissions. Appen. pp. 94-
3 95. In response to the request to Admit or Deny:

4 That putting one's feet up on the desk while
5 seated in a desk chair during a shift was not
6 specifically disallowed in any employment
7 hand/rule book.

8 the Employer responded

9 The request calls for and [sic] admission
10 which would be irrelevant. Without waiving
11 said objection the request for admission is
12 admitted.

13 Appen. p. 45. Emphasis added.

14 In Claimant's C-1 Report Form (Appen. p. 225), in
15 response to the question "Did the accident happen in the normal
16 course of work?", the Employer checked "YES".

17 The Claimant was seen for his job injuries at the
18 Concentra Medical Center. An attending physician linked spinal
19 (neck, thoracic and lumbar) injuries to Claimant's job accident
20 in his C-4 Claim Form. Appen. p. 230. Nevada law requires that
21 the Employer's responding C-3 Form must be timely prepared and
22 submitted to the insurer. The Employer's C-3 (Appen. p. 235), in
23 response to the question "If validity of claim is doubted, state
24 reason", responded: "N/A".

25 IV.

26 ARGUMENT

27 1. The appeals officer's June 15, 2009 Decision and Order is
28 supported by substantial evidence and devoid of legal error.

The standard for reviewing administrative action is
abuse of discretion; thus review is limited to determining
whether there was substantial evidence in the record to support

1 the determination below. State Indus. Ins. Sys. v. Christensen,
2 106 Nev. 2, 787 P.2d 408 (1990). Pursuant to NRS 233B.135(3)
3 this Court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the
4 agency as to the weight of evidence on a question of fact. This
5 Court's role in reviewing an administrative decision is to
6 determine whether the agency's decision was arbitrary or
7 capricious and thus an abuse of discretion. Jourdan v. State
8 Indus. Ins. Sys., 109 Nev. 497, 853 P.2d 99 (1993).

9 Substantial evidence, in the context of administrative
10 findings and decisions is that quantity and quality of evidence
11 which a reasonable mind could accept as adequate to support a
12 conclusion. State, Employment Sec. Dep't v. Hilton Hotels, 102
13 Nev. 606, 729 P.2d 497 (1986). Determining substantial evidence
14 does not include weighing the evidence to determine if a burden
15 of proof was met, nor is the reviewing court permitted to pass on
16 credibility or to reverse an administrative decision because it
17 is against the great weight and clear preponderance of the
18 evidence, if there was any substantial evidence to sustain it.
19 (id. p. 608 Footnote No. 1)

20 An agency's conclusions of law which are closely
21 related to the agency's view of the facts are entitled to
22 deference and not to be disturbed if they are supported by
23 substantial evidence. State Indus. Ins. Sys. v. Khweiss, 108
24 Nev. 123, 825 P.2d 218 (1992). The appeals officer has full
25 power and authority to determine the facts presented at
26 administrative hearings and to construe and apply the applicable
27 laws. Nevada Indus. Comm'n. v. Reese, 93 Nev. 115, 120, 560 P.2d
28 1352 (1977). An agency charged with the duty of administering an

1 act is impliedly clothed with power to construe it. City of Reno
2 v. Reno Police Protective Ass'n, 98 Nev. 472, 653 P.2d 156
3 (1982). The appeals officer's findings of causation, extent of,
4 and permanency of work injuries are a question of fact, not to be
5 set aside unless against the manifest weight of evidence. State
6 Indus. Ins. Sys. v. Swinney, 103 Nev. 17, 731 P.2d 359 (1987);
7 Nevada Indus. Comm'n v. Hildebrand, 100 Nev. 47, 675 P.2d 40
8 (1984). Questions of law are reviewed de novo. Bob Allyn
9 Masonry v. Murphy, 124 Nev. __, 183 P.3d 126 (2008).

10 **NRS 616C.150. Compensation prohibited unless**
11 **preponderance of evidence establishes that**
12 **injury arose out of and in course of**
13 **employment; rebuttable presumption if notice**
14 **of injury is filed after termination of**
15 **employment**

16 1. An injured employee or his dependents are
17 not entitled to receive compensation pursuant
18 to the provisions of chapters 616A to 616D,
19 inclusive, of NRS unless the employee or his
20 dependents establish by a preponderance of
21 the evidence that the employee's injury arose
22 out of and in the course of his employment.

23 2. For the purposes of chapters 616A to 616D,
24 inclusive, of NRS, if the employee files a
25 notice of an injury pursuant to NRS 616C.015
26 after his employment has been terminated for
27 any reason, there is a rebuttable presumption
28 that the injury did not arise out of and in
the course of his employment.

29 The Employer argues that: (1) "arising out of" is not
30 met under the increased risk test and (2) Claimant acted outside
31 scope of employment through his alleged reckless personal
32 actions.

33 **NRS 616A.030. "Accident" defined**

34 "Accident" means an unexpected or unforeseen
35 event happening suddenly and violently, with
36 or without human fault, and producing at the

1 time objective symptoms of an injury.

2 **NRS 616A.265. "Injury" and "personal injury"**
3 **defined**

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